

# CLINTON CITY COUNCIL MINUTES CITY HALL 2267 North 1500 W Clinton UT 84015

MAYOR L. Mitch Adams

### **CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS**

Anna Stanton Karen Peterson Mike Petersen Barbara Patterson TJ Mitchell

<b>Date of Meeting</b>	March 8, 2016	Call to Order	7:01 p.m.
Staff Present	City Manager Dennis Cluff, Community Development Director Will Wright, Fire Chief Dave Olsen, Public Works Director Mike Child, and Lisa Titensor recorded the minutes.		
Citizens Present	Tanner Hittle, Dawson Hittle, Alan Hittle, Heidi Mekon, Isis Buckles, Bob Buckles, Ben Nielson, Andy Hale, Parker Murdock, David Pickett, Christie Pickett, Dawson Simmons, Devon Simmons, Josh Simmons, Jacob Woolley, Caleb Woolley, Trenton Ward, Ashlee Ward, Ron Wehrle, Andrew Little, DJ McFarland, Don McFarland, Holly Nielson, Brian Cunningham, John Little, Jonathan Chapman, Rob Elggren, Omer Dillon, Linda Hogge, Dave Owens, Mark Staples, Jake Craig, Brady Craig, Kathy Craig		
Pledge of Allegiance	Tanner Hittle of Troop 392		
Prayer or Thought	Dawson Hittle of Troop 392		
Roll Call &	Present were: Councilmember Patterson, Councilmember K. Peterson, Councilmember Stanton, Councilmember M. Petersen, Councilmember TJ Mitchell and Mayor Adams		
Attendance A FMPLOVEE	·		·
Petitioner	A. EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH FOR FEBRUARY 2016 – TOM MURDOCK		13
Pennoner	Dennis Cluff, Fire Chief Ol	l like to recommend Tom Murd	1.6. 7. 1. 6.1
	Firefighter/AEMT. The part staffing levels of 4 people, 2 work his regular scheduled demonstrating numerous tin need. Tom is always very pure staff of the staff	com joined Clinton Fire on Octor-time staff is relied on heavily 24/7, 365 days a year. Tom is veshifts (36 hours a month minimes that he is willing to step upunctual and courteous showing a state of readiness. He is alwage.	to help maintain minimum ery dependable not only to um), but also in and help out in times of up early for his shifts. He is
	qualified service technician	Engineer with the South Davis I for their self-contained breathins arise in Clinton with the SCE knowledge.	ng apparatus (SCBA).
	University (UVU) and an In Candidate Academy at Brid player and is always willing service and leads by example	Fire and Rescue Academy Tess structor/Tester for the Fire and gerland Applied Technology Cost to help anyone. Tom is a great le. Tom has demonstrated the quis well deserving of this recognition.	Rescue Services Recruit  bllege. Tom is a true team  mentor to others in the fire  ualities and values of a
		preciation for the excellent serventh an award and gift card in recorded service to the City.	

	TATION TO BEN NIELSON OF UTAH FIRE OFFICER DESIGNATION AWARD	
Petitioner	Dennis Cluff	
	Fire Chief Olsen explained that Captain Ben Nielson has earned the Utah Fire Officer Designation Award. He stated that Ben is now one of only 15 recipients of this designation statewide.	
	In 2011, the International Association of Fire Chiefs released the 2nd Edition of the Officer Development Handbook (ODH). Four levels of career development are delineated in the ODH based on specific duties at each level. Certification as a Fire Officer shows that a person has met the minimum standard as set by the NFPA, while the ODH lays out a more optimum standard reflecting a more holistic view of how a person has prepared to become a Fire Officer.	
	The Utah Fire Officer Designation Program (UFODP) uses the ODH as a basis to recognize fire company officers' personal achievement through the following four area training; education; certification; and experience.	
Discussion	This recognition program for Utah fire professionals provides a coherent and attainable guide to career advancement. To help prospective fire officers achieve each element found in the ODH, the UFODP provides a resources matrix, which identifies resources available to Utah firefighters, including certifications, training and college courses, an experiences that will help them attain the designation. The idea behind the UFODP is that a person's ability to perform well as an officer depends on more than a test; capability is built by years of varied and quantifiable learning and growing experience New firefighters can use the UFODP to map out a path for career advancement. Fire departments can use the FODP to help define promotional qualifications.	
	Chief Olsen introduced Dave Owens from the Utah Fire Rescue Academy to present th award/achievement to Captain Nielson. Mr. Owens said this recognition symbolizes Ben's dedication and determination and requires years of hard work to achieve.	
	Mr. Nielson said he feels it appropriate to thank his wife and kids for their support. He also thanked Chief Olsen and Assistant Chief Benavides and City Manager Cluff for their support. He expressed appreciation for Mr. Owens for coming to present him wit this award. He explained this process has taken a few years to achieve but it is well worth it. He feels higher education is important; he hopes to see more opportunity in the future for Clinton City employees to receive incentives for achieving higher education goals.	
2 71 217	Mayor Adams and the Council congratulated Captain Nielson on his achievement of Utah Fire Officer Designation.	
	Γ CITY PROPERTIES INFORMATION	
Petitioner	Dennis Cluff	
Discussion	The City Council reviewed the following properties owned by Clinton City:  Civic Center Park—When the Civic Center Park was constructed, a buffer zone was desired against the existing homes. At that time the residents of those homes chose to have homes buffering them from the park. The park was laid out with 5 lots to buffer the existing homes. These lots are west of the bowery. All of the utilities are installed into these lots. These lots have not been platted yet and are being maintained by the City for weeds. These 5 lots were previously re-zoned R-1-10 to be compatible with the adjacent subdivision.	
	Pond ParkAs part of the purchase of the old city hall site and park, the developer gave the City 2 lots at the east end of the pond park for possible park expansion. The	

gave the City 2 lots at the east end of the pond park for possible park expansion. The City had previously purchased an adjacent lot in 2004 from Benchmark Homes for

\$54,900. No expansion of the park has taken place yet and the City has been maintaining these lots for weeds. The lots have been platted, are zoned R-1-15 and all of the utilities are installed into these lots.

West Fairfield Park---When Clinton City obtained the West Fairfield Park (3.582 acres) they also received property on the south side of 600 North (0.443 acres). This property is not connected to the park and is being maintained by the City for weeds. The power lines cross this parcel. No utilities are installed for this parcel and it is not a buildable lot due to the power lines. A portion of this lot is being considered by Doug Hamblin as an ingress/egress access to his proposed single street subdivision southwest of the City lot. Both City owned parcels are zoned R-1-9. Mayor Adams clarified there is one buildable lot.

Mayor Adams said he is not in favor of selling any City property at this time.

Councilmember K. Peterson asked what the intended purpose is for the Civic Center lots. She questioned if parking is the right use for this property.

Councilmember Patterson and Mr. Cluff responded that there has been discussion for the potential of placing a detention pond on the property.

Councilmember Stanton said if the City builds a recreation center, these lots may be useful for parking.

Mayor Adams clarified the City acquired this property as part of the 57 acre Civic Center development.

Mr. Cluff explained that the property has improvements and is zoned R-1-10. The initial intent was for houses. Temporary parking has also been a consideration but surrounding neighbors were not in favor. Property in the City is limited; the property has value to the City for the future.

Councilmember K. Peterson said her intent in asking for this information was to evaluate current City owned property.

Mayor Adams clarified that a lot at West Fairfield Park was initially purchased to build a bathroom.

Councilmember M. Petersen said it might be useful to have plans in regards to these properties potential use written down.

Councilmember Patterson said she feels the City needs to keep these lots for the future.

Councilmember Mitchell recused himself from the discussion because he is a developer.

Councilmember Stanton said she is in favor of keeping the lots for now; she said eventually more discussion for the potential of the lots can take place.

# D. 7:15 PM PUBLIC HEARING, ORDINANCE 16-01Z AMENDMENT TO TITLE 28 CHAPTER 22 OF THE CLINTON CITY ZONING ORDINANCE REGARDING PATIO HOME ZONE (PH)

# Petitioner Community Development, Planning Commission Mr. Wright explained that as requested by the City Council on January 19, 2016, the Planning Commission has considered amending Chapter 22 – Patio Home Zone (PH) in the Zoning Ordinance to increase the opportunities in which a PH infill zone could occur to better meet the intent of the General Plan regarding senior living options in the City. There are several changes proposed for this amendment: 28-22-3(1) remove reference 'as indicated on the Master Land Use Map'; 28-22-3(2)(a) – increase infill from maximum of 5 acres to 18 acres; table 22.4.4 clarify 1 story for main building with footnote that reads, "Habitable attic space permitted over garage area. No alteration of roofline or dormers allowed"; table 22.4.7 indicate the street design is the standard street design rather than the alternate design; and 28-22-6(3) indicates a development

agreement may be part of the approval process rather than a requirement. A d d i t i o n a l l y t here were several other minor formatting changes that did not change any of the substance of this chapter.

Mayor Adams opened the public hearing at 7:33 p.m. and asked for public comment. There was none; he closed the public hearing at 7:34 p.m.

Mayor Adams said he feels this is a good change to meet the needs of the City in regards to patio homes.

Councilmember M. Petersen said he feels if this is passed, there will be property owners in the R-1-10 zones asking for this type of development as well. He is concerned about spot zoning.

Councilmember K. Peterson said this could potentially apply to several pieces of property in the City.

Mr. Cluff commented the intent of making this modification to the zoning ordinance is to provide patio homes to accommodate the need of seniors in Clinton City.

Councilmember K. Peterson expressed appreciation to staff and the Planning Commission for their efforts on this issue. She feels this is a good option for accommodating the General Plan guidelines. She is in favor of this ordinance change.

Mayor Adams said that public comment from previous public hearings appear to be in favor of this type of development in this area over starter homes.

Councilmember Stanton said she appreciates all the hard work of the Planning Commission. She is in support of this change to the Zoning Ordinance to accommodate the General Plan.

## CONCLUSION

Councilmember Stanton moved to adopt Ordinance 16-01Z, approving changes to Chapter 22 of the Clinton City Zoning Ordinance. Councilmember Patterson seconded the motion. Voting by roll call is as follows: Councilmember K. Peterson, aye; Councilmember Patterson, aye; Councilmember Stanton, aye; Councilmember Mitchell, aye; Councilmember M. Petersen, no.

E. 7:15 P.M. – ORDINANCE 15-12Z, PREVIOUSLY TABLED FROM JANUARY 26, 2016 REGARDING APPLICANT'S REZONE REQUEST OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 2382 WEST 1800 NORTH FROM RESIDENTIAL (R-1-9) TO PATIO HOME (PH).

Characteristics of a desired single family retirement community

#### Petitioner

Bruce Nilson, Nilson Homes

The Master Land Use Plan shows this area as Performance Zone along 1800 North and the remainder of this parcel as Residential (R-1-9) with the Master Land Use Map only designating one area in the Patio Home zone. However, the land use section of the General Plan references the need for high-quality retirement communities. The following chart found on page 10 of the General Plan outlines characteristics of a desired single family retirement community.

# Discussion

011411	characteristics of a desired single ranning retirement community		
	Should not be allowed in all zones		
	Allow in areas where the higher density would not detract from large		
	lot developments		
	Frontage of lots should not be adjacent to frontage of larger lots		
	Density increases over established zone should be based on		
	development criteria over standard development criteria and outlined in		
	an infill ordinance		
	Allow only in small areas that are considered infill		
	Developments should improve the overall characteristics of surrounding		
	properties		
	Require proof (through assessed values) of higher quality products		
	Access should not be restricted		

Quantifiable criteria for percentages of increase over established zone

Qualifications for higher density should be established

	Landscape requirements and enhancements	
	Recorded Development Agreement with all approved development	
	criteria	
	Superior building materials	
	Quantity and quality of community amenities	
	Established and professionally managed HOA	
	Trail / park / shopping / transportation access for residents	
	Require proof that the City has adequate infrastructure to support the	
	development	
	Public streets and infrastructure meet established guidelines	
	Meets unmet housing demand	
Dev	veloper is builder	
	Architectural theme with diversity of appearance	

The Zoning Code in Chapter 28-22 indicates the Patio Home zoning is permitted in single family residential zones R-1-6, R-1-8 and R-1-9 as an infill zone for parcels five (5) acres or less with other conditions noted in this chapter. There is a conventional table 28.22.5 that provides different characteristic for a PH zone. This 17.58 parcel would fit into those land characteristics; however the Ordinance and/or Master Land Use Map would need to be amended to provide for this area to be designated as PH.

This area is currently zoned R-1-9 on both the Zoning Map and the Master Land Use Map with the frontage along 1800 North designated for Performance Zone on the Master Land Use Map. It is worth noting, this same rezone request was rejected by the Commission and City Council over the past eighteen (18) months.

In the previous agenda item the City Council voted to amend the Zoning Ordinance including 28-22-3(2)(a) – increasing the infill maximum from 5 acres to 18 acres.

Mayor Adams asked for public comment.

Mark Staples with Nilson Homes said he appreciates the due diligence by Clinton City to address this issue. He said this development will benefit Clinton City. Nilson Homes builds quality homes.

Mayor Adams closed the public hearing at 7:53 p.m.

# CONCLUSION

Councilmember K. Peterson moved to adopt 15-12Z rezoning the property located at approximately 2382 W 1800 N from R-1-9 to Patio Home Zone. Councilmember Stanton seconded the motion. Voting by roll call is as follows: Councilmember K. Peterson, aye; Councilmember Patterson, aye; Councilmember Stanton, aye; Councilmember Mitchell, aye; Councilmember M. Petersen, aye.

#### F. Potential City Participation in the Canal Crossing Costs for a West Side Connector Street

Petitioner	Dennis Cluff	
	Councilmember Mitchell recused himself from the discussion due to his personal business connection to the project.	
	Mayor Adams explained the City has a desire to have connectivity through a corridor between 1800 N. to 2300 N.	
Discussion	He reviewed the maps included in the staff report with the Council and public who were present to identify the locations of the intended canal crossings.	
	He explained that the City has already agreed to participate with \$25,000.00 for the first canal crossing.	
	Participation with the developers in half the cost of the installation for the next crossing below is what is being considered in this discussion.	

Mr. Wright reviewed the following information included in the staff report with the Council:

In January of this year, the City Council agreed to participate with \$25,000 for the purchase of a steel culvert and its installation to cross the Davis County Canal between the Stone Gate and Clinton Meadows North subdivisions. When the Council discussed this contribution it was briefly mentioned that a similar contribution may be needed for the Layton Canal crossing on the south side of the Clinton Meadows North when the Clinton Meadows South subdivision seeks development.

The City's main interest has been to provide a north-south connector street, west of 3000 West, between 1800 N. and 2300 N. This connector street would improve transportation circulation in this area and the water, secondary water, sewer and land drain systems would be significantly improved by looping their lines across these canals at these street crossings. This street alignment concept was approved years ago in the City's Master Transportation Plan and supports the City's efforts to cooperate with developers to provide this connector street.

In looking at this Layton Canal crossing between the North and South Meadows Subdivisions, it is important to recognize that the Meadows South Subdivision is <u>not required</u> to have a second ingress/egress access because it will only contain 18 lots. Because of this smaller size, it only requires one subdivision ingress/egress access point (1800 N.)

To follow the Master Plan intent, to provide a west north-south connector between collector streets, and somewhat follow the precedent just previously set pertaining to this connector street, staff feels it is in the City's best interest to participate in paying for some of the expense of a culvert and the road materials needed for this canal crossing.

The estimated cost of road materials and installation of the concrete culvert for the Layton Canal crossing is \$100,000. Because of the future benefits to the City, staff respectfully requests that the Clinton City Council approve \$50,000 to go towards the cost of this culvert and its installation to cross this canal with the two adjacent property owners to work out the remainder of the costs for this canal crossing. Staff will continue working with these developers to work out the details and to prepare an agreement before these projects move forward.

Mayor Adams said he feels participation in this project now is in the best interest of the City because of the willingness of these developers to share in the cost, the City will benefit from these improvements several years ahead of when the City could afford the full amount to put the culvert in at a later date. The intent is to set an amount and have the Developers come up with the difference.

Mr. Cluff explained the money can be taken from the Storm Drain Fund or the Street Fund; a budget amendment will be necessary.

#### CONCLUSION

Councilmember M. Petersen moved to participate in the canal crossing on the west side of the connector street for \$50,000.00. Councilmember Stanton seconded the motion. Voting by roll call is as follows: Councilmember K. Peterson, aye; Councilmember Patterson, aye; Councilmember Stanton, aye; Councilmember M. Petersen, aye.

# Approval of Minutes

Councilmember M. Petersen moved to approve the minutes of the February 9, 2016 City Council Meeting as written. Councilmember Stanton seconded the motion. All voted in favor of the motion.

Councilmember Mitchell asked for staff to provide information on the recent police vehicle purchases.

#### **Accounts Payable**

He then asked Mr. Child to provide an explanation of a \$2100.00 charge for Westland Ford.

Councilmember Patterson moved to pay the bills. Councilmember Mitchell

Clinton City Council	March 8, 2016		
	seconded the motion. All voted in favor of the motion.		
Planning Commission Report	Mr. Wright reported on the March 1, 2016 Planning Commission meeting as identified in the minutes		
City Manager	<ul> <li>West Point Jr. High will have a Community Council meeting on March 9 at 5 p.m.;</li> <li>Identified there are political caucuses scheduled for March 22; the City Council directed staff to cancel the City Council Meeting so the Council could attend the caucuses;</li> <li>He will attend a meeting at Weber Basin Water District on March 9 at 9 a.m.;</li> <li>The Parks Board will meet March 23 at 7 p.m.</li> </ul>		
Mayor	Nothing at this time.		
Councilmember Patterson	<ul> <li>Mitchell Development has agreed to be a sponsor for the Golf Tournament;</li> <li>The Parks Board will meet March 23;</li> <li>Expressed appreciation to the Planning Commission</li> </ul>		
Councilmember K. Peterson	<ul> <li>Thanked the Fire Department for their annual report and participation in a cancer event in Salt Lake which was featured on the news;</li> <li>Hosted the Youth Council at the State Capital which was a huge success;</li> <li>The Arts Board is holding a Karaoke Night in March and April</li> </ul>		
Councilmember M. Petersen	<ul> <li>Expressed concern that the County be informed of the city's position on issues such as animal control etc.</li> <li>Mayor Adams responded the City Managers are working out the details for animal control.</li> <li>Mr. Cluff said an over site committee is being discussed.</li> <li>Asked if the WDCC could attend a meeting in April to report on water conditions.</li> </ul>		
Councilmember Stanton	<ul> <li>The North Davis Sewer District will have an Open House;</li> <li>The Youth Council greatly appreciated visiting the State Capitol;</li> <li>Expressed concern over losing more police officers – she would like to see their wages be a priority for the upcoming budget year</li> </ul>		
Councilmember Mitchell	Has been attending LPC meetings, was disappointed that SB 235 – internet sales tax did not make it through; they are still working on retirement and police body cams		
Mike Child	<ul> <li>Will be meeting in April with WFRC to find out if Clinton will receive funds for three projects the City submitted for;</li> <li>Reported that GIS technology is available for the City to store and access data and images online which can be accessed with a password;</li> <li>The Davis County Recycling Center has been closed.</li> </ul>		
<b>Public Comment</b>	Rob Elggren stated that Rick Smith is the new Director of the Weber Davis Canal Company. They intend on attending a meeting to address the meters being installed in Clinton City.		
ADJOURNMENT	Councilmember M. Petersen moved to adjourn. Councilmember Stanton seconded the motion. All voted in favor of the motion. The meeting adjourned at 8:37 p.m.		
<u>ACTION ITEMS</u>	<ul> <li>Westland Ford payment of \$2100 for white smoke engine repair         The repair was to replace a part called "exhaust—Gas –recirculation cooler". When this part fails it allows coolant to enter the exhaust system and the result is white smoke out the pipe.         </li> <li>Cancel March 22 City Council meeting due to the political caucuses</li> <li>Ask Davis Weber Canal Company to attend a meeting to give a report of water conditions for 2016.</li> </ul>		